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fuses. The following list identifies each
of these 14 cases by an EDSFI inspection

follow-up item (IFI) number and the
publicly available inspection report in

which the lack of protective device
coordination issue was closed out.

Plant name EDSFI IFI No. Report date Closeout inspec-
tion report Report date

1. Oyster Creek ........................................................................... 219/92–80–11 7/9/92 94–01 3/10/94
2. Nine Mile Point 1 ..................................................................... 220/91–80–07 1/10/92 94–20 11/4/94
3. Nine Mile Point 1 ..................................................................... 220/91–80–07A 1/10/92 94–20 11/4/94
4. Nine Mile Point 1 ..................................................................... 220/91–80–07B 1/10/92 94–20 11/4/94
5. Nine Mile Point 1 ..................................................................... 220/91–80–07C 1/10/92 94–20 11/4/94
6. Dresden ................................................................................... 237/91–201–05 9/20/91 92–21 10/8/92
7. Quad Cities .............................................................................. 254/91011–09A 6/24/91 94–26 12/5/94
8. Quad Cities .............................................................................. 254/91011–9B 6/24/91 94–26 12/5/94
9. Quad Cities .............................................................................. 254/91011–9C 6/24/91 94–26 12/5/94
10. Hatch ..................................................................................... 321/91–202–07 8/22/91 93–19 11/2/93
11. McGuire ................................................................................. 369/91–09–01 2/19/91 94–20 10/12/94
12. Fort Calhoun .......................................................................... 285/91–01–03 5/20/91 92–30 12/31/92
13. WNP2 .................................................................................... 397/92–01–20 5/5/92 93–16 6/4/93
14. Beaver Valley 2 ..................................................................... 412/91–80–02 4/1/92 93–27 1/24/94

III. Conclusion

The institution of proceedings in
response to a request pursuant to 10
CFR 2.206 is appropriate only when
substantial health and safety issues have
been raised. See Consolidated Edison
Co. of New York (Indian Point, Units 1,
2, and 3), CLI–75–8, 2 NRC 173, 176
(1975), and Washington Public Power
Supply System (WPPSS Nuclear Project
No. 2), DD–84–7, 19 NRC 899, 923
(1984). This standard has been applied
to the concerns raised by the Petitioner
to determine if the action he requested
is warranted, and the NRC staff finds no
basis for taking such actions. Rather, as
previously explained herein, the NRC
staff believes that the Petitioner has not
raised any substantial health and safety
issues. Accordingly, the Petitioner’s
request for action pursuant to 10 CFR
2.206, as specifically stated in his letter
of February 13, 1996, and supplemented
by a letter dated May 1, 1996, is denied.

A copy of this Director’s Decision will
be filed with the Secretary of the
Commission for the Commission’s
review in accordance with 10 CFR
2.206(c). This Decision will become the
final action of the Commission 25 days
after issuance unless the Commission,
on its own motion, institutes review of
the Decision within that time.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 10th day
of October 1996.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Frank J. Miraglia,
Acting Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation.
[FR Doc. 96–28736 Filed 11–7–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590–01–P

[Docket No. 50–245, License No. DPR–21]

Northeast Utilities, Millstone Nuclear
Power Station, Unit 1; Issuance of
Director’s Decision Under 10 CFR
2.206

Notice is hereby given that the Acting
Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation, has taken action with regard
to a Petition dated December 30, 1994,
by Mr. Anthony J. Ross (Petition for
action under 10 CFR 2.206). The
Petition pertains to Millstone Nuclear
Power Station, Unit 1.

In the Petition, the Petitioner asserted
that (1) the licensee does not adequately
control work and procedure compliance
at Millstone, as evidenced by the use of
standard commercial-grade lugs in a gas
turbine fuel forwarding pump and
motor that are quality assurance (QA)
subsystems of the emergency gas turbine
generator and which had apparently
been crimped using diagonal pliers;
improper Raychem splices, cable bend
radius, and connections in the
connection boxes of major safety-related
QA equipment; and installation of non-
QA lugs and improperly performed
crimping in fire protection QA
emergency lights and (2) the Petitioner
was subjected to ridicule by the gas
turbine system engineer for raising
concerns regarding the lugs on the gas
turbine fuel forwarding pump and
motor. The Petitioner requested that the
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC) (1) ‘‘force’’ Northeast Utilities
(NU) to review all existing work orders
for the past 10 or 12 years, with NRC
oversight, to ensure that quality
assurance motor and connection work
does not have certain deficiencies; (2)
assess a Severity Level I violation
against NU and its managers for
apparent violations of 10 CFR 50.7 and
a Severity Level III violation against a
gas turbine system engineer at Millstone

for his apparent violation of 10 CFR 50.7
and NU’s ‘‘Code of Conduct and
Ethics;’’ and (3) institute sanctions
against the system engineer and NU and
its managers for engaging in deliberate
misconduct in violation of 10 CFR 50.5.

The Acting Director of the Office of
Nuclear Reactor Regulation has
determined to deny the Petition. The
reasons for this denial are explained in
the ‘‘Director’s Decision Pursuant to 10
CFR 2.206’’ (DD–96–17), the complete
text of which follows this notice and is
available for public inspection at the
Commission’s Public Document Room,
the Gelman Building, 2120 L Street,
NW., Washington, DC, and at the local
public document room located at the
Learning Resources Center, Three Rivers
Community-Technical College, 574 New
London Turnpike, Norwich,
Connecticut, and at the temporary local
public document room located at the
Waterford Library, ATTN: Vince
Juliano, 49 Rope Ferry Road, Waterford,
Connecticut.

A copy of the Decision will be filed
with the Secretary of the Commission
for the Commission’s review in
accordance with 10 CFR 2.206(c) of the
Commission’s regulations. As provided
by this regulation, the Decision will
constitute the final action of the
Commission 25 days after the date of
issuance unless the Commission, on its
own motion, institutes a review of the
Decision in that time.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 31st day
of October 1996.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Ashok C. Thadani,
Acting Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation.
[DD–96–17]

I. Introduction
On December 30, 1994, Mr. Anthony

J. Ross (Petitioner) filed a Petition with
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1 Quality Assurance comprises those quality
assurance actions related to the physical
characteristics of a material, structure, component,
or system which provide a means to control the
quality of the material, structure, component, or
system to predetermined requirements.

the Executive Director for Operations of
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC) pursuant to Section 2.206 of Title
10 of the Code of Federal Regulations
(10 CFR 2.206). In the Petition, the
Petitioner asserted that (1) inadequate
work control and procedure compliance
exist at Millstone Unit 1, as evidenced
by the use of standard commercial-grade
lugs in a gas turbine fuel forwarding
pump and motor that are quality
assurance (QA) 1 subsystems of the
emergency gas turbine generator and
which had apparently been crimped
using diagonal pliers; improper
Raychem splices, cable bend radius, and
connections in the connection boxes of
major safety-related QA equipment; and
non-QA lugs installed, and improperly
performed crimping, in fire protection
quality assurance (FPQA) emergency
lights, and (2) he had been subjected to
ridicule by the gas turbine system
engineer for raising concerns regarding
the lugs on the gas turbine fuel
forwarding pump and motor and that
the system engineer willfully violated
10 CFR 50.5 and 50.7.

The Petitioner requested that the NRC
(1) require Northeast Utilities (NU) to
review all existing work orders for the
past 10 or 12 years, with NRC oversight,
to ensure that QA motor and connection
work does not have certain deficiencies;
(2) assess a Severity Level I violation
against NU and its managers for
apparent violations of 10 CFR 50.7 and
a Severity Level III violation against the
gas turbine system engineer at Millstone
for his apparent violation of 10 CFR 50.7
and NU’s ‘‘Code of Conduct and
Ethics;’’ and (3) institute sanctions
against the system engineer and NU and
its managers for engaging in deliberate
misconduct in violation of 10 CFR 50.5.

By letter dated February 23, 1995, the
NRC informed the Petitioner that the
Petition had been referred to the Office
of Nuclear Reactor Regulation pursuant
to 10 CFR 2.206 of the Commission’s
regulations. The NRC also informed the
Petitioner that the staff would take
appropriate action within a reasonable
time regarding the specific concerns
raised in the Petition. On the basis of a
review of the issues raised by the
Petitioner as discussed below, I have
concluded that the actions sought by the
Petitioner are not warranted.

II. Discussion

A. Inadequate Work Control and
Procedural Compliance Issues

The issues raised by the Petitioner
regarding the improper crimping and
use of commercial grade lugs in the gas
turbine fuel forwarding pump and
motor; improper Raychem splices, cable
bend radius, and connection issues, and
improper crimping and use of non-QA
lugs in emergency lighting, have been
addressed in correspondence between
the NRC and NNECO, and have been the
subject of evaluations by NNECO and an
NRC inspection. Specifically, by letters
dated December 5 and 28, 1994, and
February 14, 1995, and during a phone
conversation on December 15, 1994, the
NRC raised these issues and requested
NNECO to submit written responses. By
letters dated March 6 and April 26,
1995, NNECO responded to these
requests and submitted information
regarding its evaluation of these issues.
On May 15 through June 21, 1995, the
NRC conducted a special safety
inspection, which focused on these and
other maintenance issues. The
inspection findings are contained in
Inspection Report (IR) 50–245/95–22,
50–336/95–22, 50–423/95–22 (IR 95–
22), dated July 21, 1995. Finally,
NNECO provided further information
regarding these issues in its August 31,
1995, response to the Petition. A broad
summary of the resolution of these
issues is set forth below.

1. Gas Turbine Fuel Forwarding Pump
and Motor Issues

The Petitioner asserts that the licensee
inadequately controls work and
procedural compliance at Millstone, as
evidenced by the use of standard
commercial-grade lugs (instead of QA
lugs) in a gas turbine fuel forwarding
pump and motor that are QA
subsystems of the emergency gas turbine
generator and which the Petitioner
asserts had been crimped with diagonal
pliers (instead of the proper crimping
tool). In its response to the Petition
dated August 31, 1995, NNECO stated
that, when the supervisor examined the
lugs in question, he concluded that
although the lugs were somewhat
discolored as a result of age, and may
have had an indented crimp, they
appeared to the supervisor to be the
type of lug that had been installed in the
1971–1972 time-frame, when no
procedures were in place with respect to
the type of lug required or the method
of crimping. NNECO further stated that
these lugs are considered acceptable
where they have already been installed
(i.e., meet original electrical standards);
however, when maintenance is

performed requiring re-lugging, the lugs
are upgraded and installed in
accordance with current procedures.

NNECO further stated that the fact
that the lugs in question were
commercial grade and may have been
crimped with diagonal pliers is not
indicative of a work control or
procedural compliance problem. The
lugs appeared to the NNECO supervisor
to be the type of lug that had been
installed at or near the time of initial
plant start-up in accordance with the
appropriate electrical standards that
existed at that time. Moreover, once the
concern was raised about the proper
type and crimping of the lugs by the
Petitioner, NNECO took prompt action
by initiating a work order to replace all
the lugs.

The NRC staff discussed the issue of
defective lugs with the maintenance
department manager and the worker
who replaced the lugs during the special
safety inspection. Neither individual
could remember the work in detail but
stated that to ensure reliability, the lugs
were replaced.

Based on NNECO’s conclusion that (1)
the lugs in question had been installed
in the 1971–1972 time-frame when no
procedures were in place with respect to
the type of lug required or the method
of crimping, (2) these lugs are
considered acceptable where installed,
and based on NNECO’s prompt action to
initiate a work order and replace all the
lugs, the NRC concludes that this issue
does not indicate an inadequate work
control or procedural compliance
problem.

2. Improper Raychem Splices, Cable
Bend Radius, and Connection Issues

The Petitioner asserts that the licensee
is inadequately controlling work and
procedural compliance at Millstone, as
evidenced by improper Raychem
splices, cable bend radius, and
connections in the connection boxes of
major safety-related QA equipment (low
pressure coolant injection (LPCI) and
core spray (CS) pumps). In its letter
dated April 26, 1995, NNECO informed
the NRC that an operability
determination had been completed on
the issue of the Raychem splice
installation, and whether Raychem
splice bend radii on the LPCI and CS
pumps were less than the recommended
limits (five times the Raychem
diameter). The operability
determination concluded that the motor
splices were operable and that an
immediate inspection to verify bend
radii was not warranted. In addition,
NNECO stated that 50 percent of the
Raychem splices on the LPCI and CS
pump motors had been inspected at that
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2 In addition, NNECO (1) performed a review of
all the work orders for the current Raychem splice
installation and verified that the procedure
specified that a minimum bend radius of five times
the Raychem diameter not be exceeded, (2) verified
that the training the electricians receive on
Raychem splices discusses the requirement of not
exceeding five times the minimum bend radius, and
(3) requested that Raychem determine what the
consequences of exceeding the minimum bend
radius would be. The results of the Raychem testing
showed that even if one or more splices exceeded
the minimum bend radius, a tighter bend radius
was acceptable.

time with no problems identified. In its
followup letter dated August 31, 1995,
NNECO stated that a visual inspection
of all the LPCI and CS pump motors had
been completed and none of the
connections exceeded the minimum
bend radius. Further, NNECO did not
identify any discrepancies in the
connection boxes for the LPCI and CS
pump motors. NNECO’s evaluations
validated the determination that the
splices are operable.2

As a result of its evaluation of
NNECO’s response and supporting
documentation and its independent
verification of two of the pump motors
in question, the NRC found NNECO’s
response acceptable and that no further
NRC review was needed. Therefore, the
NRC staff concludes that the Raychem
splices, cable bend radius, and the
connections in the connection boxes of
major safety-related equipment (LPCI
and CS motors) are acceptable.

3. Emergency Lighting Issue
The Petitioner asserts that the licensee

does not adequately control work and
procedure compliance at Millstone, as
evidenced by non-QA lugs and
improperly performed crimping in
FPQA emergency lights. The NRC staff
requested NNECO to review the use of
improper lugs for emergency lighting at
Millstone Unit 1. Specifically, the NRC
requested NNECO to review the concern
that all four lugs on emergency light
unit (ELU) 1–ELU–21 had Thomas and
Betts lugs (non-QA) rather than the
required QA AMP lugs, and all four lugs
were not crimped properly. In addition,
the NRC staff asked NNECO to review
the concern that one lug on the
emergency light 1–ELU–29 was a
Thomas and Betts lug and that three of
the four lugs were not properly crimped.

NNECO responded that a review of
the revision history for Procedure MP
790.2, ‘‘Emergency Light Inspection,’’
determined that the procedure made no
reference to a specific lug prior to April
1993. NNECO stated that because the
safety classification of these ELUs is
FPQA, the lugs utilized in the ELUs
must be FPQA. NNECO noted that
Thomas and Betts lugs are only stocked
as FPQA.

NNECO stated further that an
evaluation was performed to determine
the consequences of Thomas and Betts
lugs in lieu of AMP lugs and to
determine if all lug crimps on 1–ELU–
21 and 29 were adequate. Additionally,
NNECO’s evaluation verified the ability
of 1–ELU–21 and 29 to perform their
design function. NNECO has
determined that the lug manufacturer is
not a critical issue as long as the lug is
compatible with the battery terminal
and the wire used. In this case, the
Thomas and Betts lug is similar to the
AMP lug, and both lugs are compatible
with the battery terminals and wire
used. A compatibility study has been
completed and documented in a
Replacement Item Evaluation (RIE).

NNECO performed a review of
previous ELU surveillances to
determine whether a degraded
condition had been observed for the
battery terminal lugs in these ELUs; this
review did not reveal any degraded
conditions. The Millstone Unit 1
Engineering Department inspected the
crimping of the battery terminations,
and the eight crimps were found to be
adequate. Although all battery
termination lugs are insulated on these
ELUs, one splice on 1–ELU–29 appeared
to be crimped by a die for noninsulated
lugs. However, this crimp did not affect
operability of the ELU since a high-
resistance connection was not present,
and the insulation was not damaged.
Satisfactory completion of a battery
discharge test confirmed the adequacy
of the crimps. Nonetheless, the lug that
appeared to be crimped by a die for
noninsulated lugs on 1–ELU–29 has
been replaced.

During its special inspection, the NRC
staff reviewed the concern about
emergency lighting lugs and NNECO’s
process for lug replacement. The NRC
staff verified that specific lugs were not
called for in earlier versions of the lug
replacement procedure and, therefore,
as long as the lug was compatible and
classified as FPQA, it could be used.
Since Thomas and Betts lugs are stocked
as FPQA and are compatible, they could
have been used in ELUs. In addition,
since AMP lugs are stocked as non-QA,
the plant staff would have had to fill out
Form SF 486, ‘‘Upgrading FPQA Parts,’’
to justify the upgrade of the lugs to
FPQA standards.

The NRC staff reviewed an example of
a lug changeout with an AMP lug and
verified that Form SF 486 was included
in the package to properly document the
upgrade.

The NRC staff reviewed the RIE form
that documented the acceptability of
Thomas and Betts lugs as an alternate
for AMP lugs. The RIE indicated that the

Thomas and Betts lugs are acceptable as
an alternate item and that they will not
degrade or compromise the original
design basis. The NRC staff found the
RIE to be properly documented and
adequate. The NRC staff reviewed
procedure MP 790.2, which was revised
on April 12, 1995, and now requires that
AMP lugs be used or an equivalent as
evaluated and indicated by an RIE.
Since an RIE has been completed
documenting Thomas and Betts lugs as
an alternative, they are acceptable. The
NRC staff found the procedure adequate
and also verified that the one
questionable lug on 1–ELU–29 was
replaced. The NRC staff concluded that
the lugs on 1–ELU–21 and 29 were
adequately designed and qualified and
that the ELUs were fully operable.

Based on NRC’s findings that (1) the
use of standard commercial-grade lugs
in a gas turbine fuel forwarding pump
and motor that are QA subsystems of the
emergency gas turbine generator and
which had apparently been crimped
with diagonal pliers does not constitute
an inadequate work control or
procedural compliance problem; (2) the
Raychem splices, cable bend radius, and
the connections in the connection boxes
of major safety-related equipment (LPCI
and CS motors) are operable; and (3) the
lugs on 1–ELU–21 and 29 were
adequately designed and qualified and
the ELUs were fully operable, the NRC
staff has determined that the licensee
adequately controls work and procedure
compliance within these areas at
Millstone. Therefore, the Petitioner’s
request to require NU to review all
existing work orders for the past 10 or
12 years, with NRC oversight, to ensure
that QA motor and connection work
does not have certain deficiencies, is not
warranted.

B. Harassment and Intimidation Issue
The Petitioner alleges that he was

ridiculed by the gas turbine system
engineer for raising safety concerns
regarding the lugs on the gas turbine
fuel forwarding pump and motor and
that the system engineer willfully
violated 10 CFR 50.5 and 50.7. In
addition, the Petitioner alleges that NU
and its managers violated 10 CFR 50.5
and 50.7 and NU’s ‘‘Code of Conduct
and Ethics.’’

As indicated in a letter to the
Petitioner dated November 28, 1995,
from the Deputy Executive Director for
Nuclear Reactor Regulation, Regional
Operations and Research, the Petitioner
has raised several complaints since 1993
with the NRC or the Department of
Labor (DOL) concerning harassment,
intimidation, or discrimination by
individuals at NU because the Petitioner
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raised safety concerns to NU or the
NRC. As explained in the letter, the
NRC conducted investigations into some
of the harassment and intimidation
allegations that the Petitioner had
raised. The NRC did not substantiate
that the Petitioner suffered
discrimination for raising safety
concerns. Further, of the complaints of
harassment and intimidation that the
Petitioner raised that were investigated
by the DOL, none have been
substantiated.

The staff has, in addition, reviewed
the Petitioner’s remaining allegations of
harassment and intimidation, including
those in the Petition, and has concluded
that they do not present sufficient
information warranting further
investigatory effort. Accordingly, absent
a finding of discrimination by the
Secretary of Labor or an Administrative
Law Judge on any pending complaints,
or significant new evidence from the
Petitioner that would support the
allegations that NU has harassed,
intimidated, or discriminated against
him, the NRC staff plans no further
followup of the harassment and
intimidation complaints. Based on the
above, no further action is warranted.

III. Conclusion

The licensee evaluated the technical
issues and provided the results to the
staff for review. The staff also conducted
inspections to independently determine
if the licensee’s conclusions and
corrective actions were acceptable. As
explained above, none of the technical
issues reflect a lack of procedural
compliance or warrant additional action
by the staff. Also, as explained above,
the Petitioner’s assertion of harassment
and intimidation does not warrant any
action.

On the basis of the above assessment,
I have concluded that no issues have
been raised regarding Millstone Unit 1
that would require initiation of
enforcement action. Therefore, no
enforcement action is being taken in this
matter.

The Petitioner’s request for action
pursuant to 10 CFR 2.206 is denied. As
provided in 10 CFR 2.206(c), a copy of
this Decision will be filed with the
Secretary of the Commission for the
Commission’s review. This Decision
will constitute the final action of the
Commission 25 days after issuance
unless the Commission, on its own
motion, institutes review of the Decision
in that time.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 31st day
of October 1996.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Ashok C. Thadani,
Acting Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation.
[FR Doc. 96–28741 Filed 11–7–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590–01–P

Notice of Issuance and Availability of
NUREG–1567 Standard Review Plan
for Spent Fuel Dry Storage Facilities

The United States Nuclear Regulatory
Commission has issued a draft report
NUREG–1567 entitled ‘‘Standard
Review Plan for Spent Fuel Dry Storage
Facilities,’’ for review and comment.

The Standard Review Plan for Spent
Fuel Dry Storage Facilities (FSRP) is
prepared for the guidance of staff
reviewers in the Spent Fuel Project
Office in performing safety reviews of
license applications for installations for
dry storage of nuclear materials under
Title 10 Code of Federal Regulations,
Chapter 1, Part 72 (10 CFR 72). The
principal purpose of the FSRP is to
assure the quality and uniformity of
staff safety reviews. It is also the intent
of this plan to make information about
regulatory matters widely available and
to improve communications between
the NRC, interested members of the
public, and the nuclear power industry,
thereby increasing understanding of the
review process. The FSRP also defines
a basis for evaluating modifications of
the review process in the future.

Draft NUREG–1567 is available for
inspection and copying for a fee at the
NRC Public Document Room, 2120 L
Street NW (Lower Level), Washington,
D.C. 20555–0001. A free copy of Draft
NUREG–1567 may be requested by
writing to Distribution Services,
Printing and Mail Services Branch,
Office of Administration, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
D.C. 20555–0001.

Comments on all aspects of this draft
document are welcome and will be
considered and incorporated into the
FSRP, as appropriate. Furthermore,
since the staff is considering alternatives
to the seismic requirements in § 72.102,
for ISFSIs, comments are particularly
invited on Sections 2.4.6 and 2.5.6. It is
requested that comments be submitted
using the form (or a photocopy thereof)
contained in Appendix E. Comments on
draft NUREG–1567 should be submitted
by March 1, 1997. The FSRP is
scheduled for publication as an NRC
NUREG document in 1997.

A separate Standard Review Plan for
Dry Cask Storage Systems (DCSRP) was
issued for public comment in February
1996 as draft NUREG 1536. The DCSRP
is scheduled to be published as an NRC

NUREG document in January 1997. To
ensure consistency between the two
standard review plans (SRPs),
comments on sections common to both
SRPs will be considered and
incorporated, as appropriate, in both
NUREGs.

Mail comments to: Chief, Rules
Review and Directives Branch, Division
of Freedom of Information and
Publication Services, Mail Stop T–6
D59, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555–
0001. Comments may be hand-delivered
to 11545 Rockville Pike, Rockville,
Maryland, between 7:45 a.m. and 4:15
p.m., on Federal workdays.

Comments may also be submitted
electronically, in either ASCII text or
WordPerfect format (version 5.1 or later)
containing information requested in
Appendix E, by calling the NRC
Electronic Bulletin Board on
FEDWORLD. The bulletin board may be
accessed using a personal computer, a
modem, and one of the commonly
available communications software
packages, or directly via Internet.

If using a personal computer and
modem, the NRC subsystem on
FEDWORLD can be accessed directly by
dialing the toll-free number: 1–800–
303–9672. Communication software
parameters should be set as follows:
parity to none, data bits to 8, and stop
bits to 1 (N,8,1). Using ANSI terminal
emulation, the NRC NUREG and Reg
Guide Comments subsystem can then be
accessed by selecting the ‘‘NRC Rules
Menu’’ option from the ‘‘NRC Mail
Menu.’’ For further information about
options available for NRC at
FEDWORLD, consult the ‘‘Help/
Information Center’’ from the ‘‘NRC
Main Menu.’’ Users will find the
‘‘FEDWORLD Online User’s Guides’’
particularly helpful. Many NRC
subsystems and databases also have a
‘‘Help/Information Center’’ option that
is tailored to the particular subsystem.

The NRC subsystem on FEDWORLD
can also be accessed by a direct dial
phone number for the main FEDWORLD
BBS: 703–321–3339; Telnet via Internet:
fedworld.gov (192.239.92.3); File
Transfer Protocol (FTP) via Internet:
ftp.fedworld.gov (192.239.92.205); and
World Web using: http://
www.fedworld.gov (this is the Uniform
Resource Locator (URL)).

If using a method other than the toll-
free number to contact FEDWORLD, the
NRC subsystem will be accessed from
the main FEDWORLD menu by selecting
the ‘‘Regulatory, Government
Administration and State Systems,’’ the
selecting ‘‘Regulatory Information
Mall.’’ At that point, a menu will be
displayed that has an option ‘‘U.S.
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